North Carolina Ryan White Electronic Eligibility Solution (NC REEDS) Case Manager Manual, Updated on February 13, 2025



NC DEPARTMENT OF **HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES** Division of Public Health

Table of Contents

| Introduction to NC REEDS | 2 |
|---|---|
| Creating an Account in NC REEDS | 2 |
| Setting Up Multifactor Authentication | 2 |
| NC REEDS User Guides and Training Videos | 4 |
| Submitting a New Client Eligibility Application in NC REEDS | 5 |
| Searching a Client and Checking For an Existing Record | 5 |
| Registering a New Client | 5 |
| When a Potential Duplicate is Detected | 6 |
| Starting the Eligibility Application | 6 |
| Applicant Subtab | 7 |
| Addresses Subtab | 8 |
| Personal Contacts Subtab | 8 |
| Income Subtab | 9 |
| Health Subtab1 ² | 1 |
| Insurance Subtab12 | 2 |
| Services Authorization13 | 3 |
| Checking Client Application Status1 | 5 |

| Client Eligibility Timeline | 15 |
|--|----|
| Application Tab | 18 |
| Pended Applications | 20 |
| Updating a Pended Application | 20 |
| Recertification Applications | 23 |
| Submitting a Recertification Application | 23 |
| Client Updates | 24 |
| Submitting a Client Update in NC REEDS | 24 |
| Incarcerated Clients | 26 |
| Statement of Financial Need | 26 |
| Completing the Eligibility Application for Clients in Jail | 26 |
| Searching a Client and Checking For an Existing Record | 26 |
| Starting the Eligibility Application | 26 |
| Applicant Subtab | 27 |
| Addresses Subtab | |
| Personal Contacts Subtab | 29 |
| Income Subtab | 29 |
| Health Subtab | 30 |
| Insurance Subtab | 31 |
| Services Authorization | 31 |
| Additional NC REEDS Resources | 33 |
| Application History | 33 |
| Dashboard | 35 |
| IT Help Desk Ticket | 35 |
| NC REEDS Help Email Account | 36 |
| Appendix A – Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) | 37 |
| Account Set-Up | 37 |
| Client Applications | |
| Eligibility and Enrollment | 40 |

Introduction to NC REEDS

The North Carolina Ryan White Part B Eligibility and Enrollment Determination Solution (NC REEDS) is the online system used to submit, process, and approve all applications for the North Carolina Ryan White Part B Care services program and the HIV Medication Assistance Program (HMAP). This manual provides an overview of how to use NC REEDS for HIV case managers and supporting agencies in North Carolina. This manual is intended to be a resource for case managers to reference when navigating NC REEDS to submit new applications, recertifications, client updates, and troubleshooting common system issues. <u>All example names and data included in this manual are fictitious.</u>

Information on the Ryan White Part B/HMAP program is available in the HMAP Program Manual and will not be fully repeated here. The current version of the HMAP Program Manual can be found on the <u>HMAP website</u>. The NC REEDS manual and HMAP Program Manual are intended to be used in tandem.

Creating an Account in NC REEDS

All agencies that serve Ryan White Part B/HMAP clients received an Agency Onboarding form to submit the names and email addresses of individuals at their agency requiring access to NC REEDS. Any case managers who have not received NC REEDS login information or are new to their agency should reach out to their NC REEDS agency administrator or the Ryan White Part B/HMAP team to receive login credentials. For more information on requesting NC REEDS access, see the Frequently Asked Questions – Account Set-Up section of this manual.

All NC REEDS users receive an automated email with their NC REEDS username and a link to set their account password. All usernames will correspond with the user's work email address. The first time users log in, they will be prompted to set up a multifactor authentication program after setting their password.



Setting Up Multifactor Authentication

All NC REEDS users are required to select a multifactor authentication (MFA) method to link to their NC REEDS account. The MFA serves as an additional security measure for protecting client information.

When NC REEDS users log into their account, they will be prompted to enter a 6-digit numeric code to verify their login attempt. The 6-digit code will be generated on the MFA of the user's choosing after linking the MFA to their NC REEDS account the first time they log in.

NC REEDS users are permitted to choose the MFA method of their preference. The table below provides additional resources for configuring different MFA methods to NC REEDS and recommended MFA apps.

| MFA | Description | Relevant Links |
|-------------------------|---|--|
| Protecc Program | Protecc is a free MFA program available for download onto Windows computers. Protecc is not a phone-based app. | Download Protecc: Protecc - 2FA Authenticator TOTP - Free download and install on Windows Microsoft Store Recorded tutorial to link Protecc to your NC REEDS account: IL RWB Case Management Training - Module One: Program Overview Provide Enterprise® by Groupware Technologies |
| Microsoft Authenticator | Microsoft Authenticator is a free MFA app linked to a Microsoft account (i.e., Outlook email). Microsoft Authenticator is available to download on IOS and Android devices. | Download Microsoft Authenticator for IOS: Download Microsoft Authenticator - Microsoft Support Download Microsoft Authenticator for Android: Download Microsoft Authenticator for Android: Download Microsoft Authenticator - Microsoft Support How to link Microsoft Authenticator to NC REEDS account: How to add your accounts to Microsoft Authenticator - Microsoft Support |
| Duo Mobile | Duo Mobile is a free MFA app available to download on IOS and Android devices. Users create an account with Duo, then link their Duo account to work/personal accounts requiring multifactor authentication. | Download Duo Mobile for IOS: <u>Duo Mobile on the</u> <u>App Store</u> Download Duo Mobile for Android: <u>Duo Mobile - Apps</u> <u>on Google Play</u> How to link Duo Mobile to your NC REEDS account: <u>Third-Party Accounts - Guide</u> |

| | | to Two-Factor Authentication · Duo Security |
|----------------------|---|--|
| Google Authenticator | Google Authenticator is a free MFA app linked to a Google account (i.e., Gmail). Google Authenticator is available to download on IOS and Android devices. | Download Google Authenticator for IOS: <u>Google</u> <u>Authenticator on the</u> <u>App Store</u> Download Google Authenticator for Android: <u>Google Authenticator - Apps</u> <u>on Google Play</u> |
| | | Google Authenticator FAQs: Google Help for 2-Step Verification - Google Account Help |

NC REEDS User Guides and Training Videos

In addition to this manual, there are NC REEDS User Guides and recorded case manager training videos available in NC REEDS.

To access these resources, navigate to the Question Mark button in the top right corner of the NC REEDS screen and select Training.



| Training | CLOSE X |
|--|------------|
| 18 Sep 2024 Case Manager Training Video | Video |
| Z waich Yobo | |
| 9 Oct 2024 HIPAA Compliance REEDS | User Guide |
| 18 Sep 2024 NC REEDS Basic Navigation Image: Constraint of the second | User Guide |
| 18 Sep 2024 NC REEDS Eligibility Applications and Client Updates ☑ View Guide | User Guide |
| 18 Sep 2024 NC REEDS Establishing a New Client and Client Profile Management View Guide | User Guide |

Submitting a New Client Eligibility Application in NC REEDS

The following section describes how to complete the eligibility application for new clients (i.e., clients that are not currently enrolled in HMAP or Ryan White care-only services).

Searching a Client and Checking For an Existing Record

Before starting an eligibility application for a client in NC REEDS, use the NC REEDS client search feature to check whether the client has an existing NC REEDS profile. Avoiding duplicate client profiles in NC REEDS is essential to ensuring there are no delays in medication dispensing or service provision for clients.

- To search for an existing client profile, select the **Client List** tab on the navigation pane.
- The Client List tab contains three subtabs:
 - **My Clients:** Contains a list of all registered clients assigned to the case manager.
 - **My Agency Clients:** Contains a list of all registered clients assigned to the case manager's agency.
 - **All Clients:** Contains a list of all registered clients across all agencies in North Carolina.
- Select the **All Clients** subtab. Search for the client by entering their first name (or at least the first letter), last name (or at least the first letter), and the full date of birth; or enter the client identifier (previously known as Case Number).
- After entering the search criteria, the system will return any clients that match the information entered. If the case manager finds a client profile already exists for the client, the case manager can proceed by opening their existing client profile.
- **Please Note:** See the <u>Frequently Asked Questions Client Applications</u> section of this manual for next steps if a duplicate client profile is found.

| Agency A Raleigh, NC | Client List | | | | | | REGISTER CLIENT |
|-------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------|------------------------------|--|-----------------------------|------------------|-----------------|
| III Dashboard | MY CLIENTS AGENCY | A CLIENTS ALL CLIENTS | ne | Birth Date | i c | lient Identifier | Q SEARCH |
| 2 Client List | | | | | | | |
| Applications | Last Name | First Name | DOB | Email | Phone N | | er |
| | | | search can be performed usin | g a combination of Name and DOB, or an | y associated Client Identif | | 0-0 of 0 < > |

Registering a New Client

- If the case manager does not identify that the client is already in NC REEDS, they can proceed to create a new client profile. To register a new client in NC REEDS, navigate to the Register Client button in the top right corner of the Client List tab.
- In the new client registration page, the case manager must enter all required information to create the client profile. Required fields are designated with an asterisk (*).
- Once all required fields are entered, select the Save button in the top right corner to register the new client.

| Agency A Raleigh, NC | Register Client | |
|-------------------------|-------------------|--|
| iiii Dashboard | Client Details | |
| 2. Client List | | |
| Applications | Basic Information | |
| | First Name * | |
| | Middle Initial | |
| | Last Name * | |
| | Name Suffix | |
| | Preferred Name | |
| | Date of Birth* | |

When a Potential Duplicate is Detected

- When a new client profile is created, NC REEDS will search existing client records to check for potential duplicates.
- If a potential duplicate is detected, NC REEDS will alert the case manager with a message indicating the client may already have an existing profile.
- If the case manager determines the potential duplicate profile is match, open the existing record and complete the client's application in the client's existing profile.
- If the case manager determines this is not a duplicate client, proceed creating the new client profile by clicking the Confirm New Registration button.

| Potential Duplicate Detected Client may already exist. Check the 'Existing Records' list below to see if you see the client you intended to create is present. If not, and this client is indeed a unique new client, click the 'Confirm New Registration' button to continue and create the new client record. | | | | | | | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|------------|------------|--|--|--|
| Your Entry | | | | | | | | |
| First Name | Last Name | | SSN | DOB | | | | |
| Emil | Blonsku | | | 02/10/1992 | | | | |
| CONFIRM NEW REGISTRATION | | | | | | | | |
| Existing Records | | | | | | | | |
| If you see the client you intended to create in the list | below, click on that client to use t | he existing record instead | of your entry. | | | | | |
| First Name Last Name | SSN | Agency | Created By | | DOB | | | |
| Emil Blonsku | | Agency A | meghan.furnari@dhhs.nc.gov | | 02/10/1992 | | | |

Starting the Eligibility Application

• After registering and saving a new client profile in NC REEDS or after selecting an existing client in NC REEDS, the system will automatically open to the client's eligibility timeline. All client applications will be initiated in the client's eligibility timeline. To begin the application, click the Start button beneath the Application header.

| Anthony Stark Client ID: 770001787 | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--|------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT CLIENT | INFORMATION | | | |
| Eligibility | | | | |
| Timeline | | | | |
| 1 | 2 RW Review | 3 | ٩ | Expiration Date |
| Application | HMAP Review | Eligibility Start Date | Recertification | ==/==/== |
| START | • •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | START | |

 Case managers can open the client's eligibility timeline at any point by searching the client in the Client List tab and selecting the client's profile from their My Clients subtab. The client can also be located by searching their information in the All Clients tab or My Agency subtab.

Applicant Subtab

• The eligibility application will contain several subtabs for the case manager to complete to determine the client's eligibility for HMAP and/or Ryan White Part B care services.

| Eligibility A | | 0 | | | | | CLOSE | SAVE | SUBMIT APPLICATION |
|---------------|-----------|-------------------|--------|--------|-----------|------------------------|-------|------|--------------------|
| APPLICANT | ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION | | | |

- Once in the eligibility application, NC REEDS will open into the Applicant subtab. Several fields will automatically populate based on the information recorded when the client was registered (e.g., name, date of birth, gender identity).
- Complete all required fields in the applicant subtab.
 - If the client does not have an email address, please add your email to the required Email Address field. Feel free to add a note to the "Communication Notes" field as well.
- The applicant subtab is where a case manager can designate if an applicant is **urgent**. If the case manager indicates the application is urgent, they will be prompted to select a reason why the application is urgent. Indicating a client's application as urgent will move the application to the top of the processors' queue.

| Urger | t Application |
|----------|--------------------------------|
| Is Clier | t's application urgent? |
| \odot | /es |
| [| Urgency Type |
| 0 | - No Selection - |
| | High Viral Load |
| Docu | Loss of Job/Employer Insurance |
| Upload | Pending Jail Discharge |
| | Pregnant |
| Docu | Rapid ART |
| | Recent Move to the State |

Addresses Subtab

- The Addresses subtab collects information related to the client's housing status, street address, and mailing address.
- Complete all required fields in the addresses subtab.

| APPLICANT ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION |
|--------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--------|---------|-----------|------------------------|
| Housing Status | Housing Status | | | | |
| Primary Address Secondary Address | Housing Status * Stable/Permanent | | | | • |
| Documentation | Housing Type * | | | | • |
| | Primary Address | | | | |
| | Address * | | | | |
| | Apt / Lot / Floor | | | | |
| | City* | | | | |
| | NC | | - Zip C | ode* | |
| | County * | | | | • |

- Verify that the County selection is accurate. If the county generates incorrectly, use the drop down menu to select the correct county.
- The case manager must provide proof of address documentation and upload the documentation within this subtab. For more information on acceptable documentation for proof of residency, see the HMAP Manual.
- To upload documentation of the client's address, navigate to the bottom of the address subtab and select the Add Documentation button.
- The case manager will be required to select the type of documentation submitted. Once the type of documentation has been entered, the case manager can upload the documentation. NC REEDS accepts PDF, PNG, and JPG files.

| Apt / Lot , | Floor | | | | | | |
|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| City | Upload Documentation CANCEL SAVE | | | | | | |
| State | Documentation Type * | | | | | | |
| County | Declaration of Residence form | | | | | | |
| | Documentation from HMAP, UMAP pharmacy, or Pharmacy Benefits Manager | | | | | | |
| ocume | Income Documentation | | | | | | |
| Journo | Provider documentation (clinician, case manager, other) | | | | | | |
| | Recent Utility Bill, Phone Bill, or Lease | | | | | | |
| ocument | State or Federal Government issued Identification Card | | | | | | |
| ocument | Valid Driver's License | | | | | | |
| enefits Ma | anager 01/06/2023 | | | | | | |

• Once the documentation has been selected, click the Save button.

Personal Contacts Subtab

• While personal contact information is not required for submitting an eligibility application, the personal contacts subtab can be used to document any household members, emergency contacts, or other persons the client would like to share as a contact person.

- Case managers can add personal contacts by selecting the Add Contact button on the personal contacts subtab. The case manager will be prompted to enter information including the contact's name, relationship to the client, and emergency contact status.
- **Please Note:** If the client is in jail, the Incarceration Interviewer must be added to the Personal Contacts subtab, either by the HMAP Jail team or the Incarceration Interviewer when completing the application.

| Eligibility Application | l | | | | |
|-------------------------|------------------------|--------------------|-----------|---------------|-------------|
| Status: Not Started | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| APPLICANT ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AU | THORIZATION |
| | | | | | |
| + ADD CONTACT | [First Name] [Last N | lamal - [Polation | chinl | HIDE DETAILS | |
| The leaf are able 3 | [First Name] [Last N | vaniej - [Relation | ishipj | HIDE DE IAIES | ~ |
| [Relationship] | First Name * | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | Last Name * | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | Relationship to Client | | | | - |
| | | | | | |
| | Date of Birth | | | Age: | |
| | | | | | |
| | Phone Number | | | | |
| | × Is this person an | emergency contact? | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | Email Address | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Income Subtab

- The income subtab collects information on personal and household income, income adjustments (when applicable), employment status, and tax return details. The client must indicate how they are supported financially and their tax filing status. If the client is employed, they will have to provide proof of income and the personal income section of this subtab will need to be completed. If the client has other household members who have income, their income source(s) must also be entered with documentation provided.
- Ryan White Part B/HMAP assesses income based on household Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) to calculate the client's federal poverty level (FPL). MAGI uses Adjusted Gross Income and adds back certain forms of income. The number of household members and the household income is required to calculate MAGI and determine if the applicant is eligible for Ryan White Part B/HMAP. More information on MAGI can be found in the HMAP Manual.
 - Additional household members must have their first and last names completed, and their relationship to the client selected from the dropdown.
 - If a client has household members prepopulated in the income section with "Unknown" entered for name and relationship (for example, from a previous application), the full name and relationship to the client must be entered.
- Case managers can check whether a client's income meets the federal poverty level eligibility criteria before completing the eligibility application in NC REEDS by entering the client's income details into the MAGI Calculation Form available on the <u>HMAP</u> <u>website</u>.
- When a client has personal income, start by selecting YES to the question, "Does this applicant have personal income?" The income questions will populate after "Yes" is selected.



- Each source of income must be added using the Add Income Source button and completing all fields therein.
- When entering income sources for the client, the case manager will be required to identify the income source type (e.g., Salary/Wages/Commissions/Tips, Social Security, Unemployment benefits, etc.), the income period (e.g., monthly, biweekly, etc.), the most recent payment amount, and the date the most recent payment was received.
- **Please Note**: Documentation of proof of income for a **full month** is required. If the client gets paid on a monthly basis, one month of recent (within 60 days) pay stubs that show year-to-date income and deductions should be entered. If the client gets paid on a biweekly (twice per month) basis, the last two consecutive paystubs (within 60 days) are sufficient. For more information on income documentation, see the HMAP Manual.
- Complete all required fields in the Income section, including household members, household member income sources, employment status, tax filing status, and income adjustments (e.g., contributions to a Health Saving Account, student loan interest deduction, etc.).

| ● Yes ○ No | Does the applicant have other household members? * | |
|--|--|--|
| Personal Income Source 1 Income Recipient | Household Member 1 | |
| Applicant Income Source Type * | First Name * | |
| Income Period * | ← Last Name * | |
| Payment 1 Amount* | Relationship to Client * | |
| Date * | + ADD HOUSEHOLD MEMBER | |

- If the client has no documented income or income at or below 125% FPL, the client must provide information as to how they meet basic living needs. This information must be documented in the Ryan White Part B & HMAP Verification of No/Low Income form and uploaded in the Income subtab by the case manager. Outdated versions of the form will not be accepted. The current version of the form can be found on the HMAP website.
- NC REEDS will automatically compute the household income totals and poverty level as income sources and adjustments are entered by the case manager.

| Income Totals |
|---|
| Total Household Size 1 |
| Monthly Household Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) \$ 2333.33 |
| MAGI Household Poverty Level % |

- Case managers are required to enter documentation verifying the client's income source(s). Documentation must be recent (i.e., within the last 60 days). To upload income documentation, navigate to the bottom of the income subtab and select the Add Documentation button.
- Specify the type of documentation (e.g., IRS federal tax return, paystubs, Low/No Income form, etc.). For more information on acceptable income documentation, see the HMAP Manual which can be found on the <u>HMAP website</u>.
- Once the documentation has been selected, click the Upload button.

| Upload Documentation | CANCEL | SAVE | | Allmony received Deductions (i.e. student loan interest paid, allmony paid) Foreign earnings IIS federal tax return (preferred) Income Signature Card Interest (Including both taxable and non-taxable) |
|--|--------|------|---|--|
| 2 Documentation Type * | | • | | Low/No Income Form Net Farming/Fishing, Rental/Royalty, Capital Gains, Lottery Winnings Other Taxable Income Source Pension/Annulty/IRA distributions benefit award letter Retrement Accounts Salary/Wages/Commission/Tips Pay Stub |
| O Click to upload, or drag a PNG, JPG, or PDF allo | | | 7 | Scholarships/Grants (if used for living expenses, not fullion and fees) Self-Employment lincome Social Security (Retirement/Survivors/Disability) benefit award letter Supplemental Security Income (SSI) benefit award letter Taxable Refunds, Credits, or Offsets of state and local income taxes Unemployment benefit award letter |
| Da. | | | | Verification of Self Employment Income Form Veteran's Payments benefit award letter |

Health Subtab

- The Health subtab collects information on the client's overall health, including HIV status, Hepatitis C diagnosis, medication history, and Proof of HIV Status.
- Complete all required fields in the health subtab, including HIV status, estimated HIV diagnosis date, and antiretroviral therapy history.

| General | | |
|---------------------|---|---|
| HIV Status | HIV Status | |
| HIV Status | | |
| Proof of HIV Status | Current Disease Stage * | |
| | HIV Positive Not AIDS | * |
| | Estimated Date HIV Diagnosed* | |
| | 06/20/2004 | Ö |
| | Identified HIV Risk Factor(s) * | |
| | Heterosexual Contact Injection drug user (IDU) | Ŧ |
| | Are you currently on Antiretroviral Therapy? * | |
| | ● Yes ○ No | |
| | Estimated Date Antiretroviral Therapy Started * | |
| | 07/14/2004 | |
| | | |

• Proof of HIV Status: Case managers are required to certify the client is HIV positive. Please share the "Terms and Conditions" that are available for download from the application with your clients. To verify the client's HIV status, the case manager will be prompted to enter their electronic signature in NC REEDS. This signature will serve as proof documentation of the client's HIV status. The date signed will automatically populate once signed.

| | Proof of HIV Status |
|---|--|
| • | certify that the above-named individual is HIV positive. I certify that I have explained (or read) the <u>Terms and Conditions for Applicant and Interviewer</u> contained within to the client who is requesting Ryan White services. |
| | Interviewer Signature * |
| | Date Signed |
| [| |

Insurance Subtab

- The Insurance subtab collects information on the client's enrollment in health insurance programs, such as ACA Marketplace coverage, Medicare coverage, and Medicaid coverage.
- If the client has insurance coverage, the case manager will be prompted to provide information in the applicable section, including the member ID, policy source (e.g., ACA marketplace, employer-sponsored, Medicare, etc.), coverage details (e.g., pharmacy, dental, substance use, etc.), and premium amount.
 - Please Note: Premium Amount and Premium Payment Frequency are required fields. If you do not have access to this information, please enter \$0.00 as the premium amount and select Monthly as the Premium Payment Frequency.

| Private Insurance | Private Insurance | |
|----------------------------|--|---|
| Dental Insurance | Private Insurance Status * | |
| Vision Insurance | Active | Ŧ |
| Medicare Part A, B, C or D | Date Effective * | |
| Medicaid | 10/01/2024 | |
| Subsidies | Policy Source * | |
| | ACA Exchange | * |
| Documentation | Insurance Company Name * | |
| | BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD | * |
| | Plan Name * | |
| | BLUE ADVANTAGE | * |
| | - Medical Coverage? | |
| | No | • |
| | - Mental Health Coverage? | |
| | No | - |
| | Substance Abuse Coverage? | |
| | No | * |
| | Pharmacy Coverage Included? | |
| | No | * |

• Case managers are required to enter documentation verifying the client's insurance coverage when the client has active insurance coverage. To upload insurance documentation, navigate to the bottom of the insurance subtab and select the Add Documentation button.

- Specify the type of documentation (e.g., insurance card, insurance carrier invoice, ACA Marketplace enrollment verification, etc.). For more information on acceptable insurance documentation, see the HMAP Manual.
- Once the documentation has been selected, click the Upload button.

| Upload CANCEL UPLOAD | Upload CANCEL UPLOAD |
|----------------------|----------------------|
| Documentation Type * | Documentation Type * |
| _ | Medicaid Check |

- If the client is at or below 140% of the Federal Poverty Level, they are required to submit proof they applied for Medicaid. This does not apply to applicants unable to apply for Medicaid for reasons such as undocumented status. Proof of the Medicaid application or letter from the case management agency must be uploaded in the Upload Documentation section of this subtab.
- For more information on the HMAP subprogram insurance coverage eligibility criteria, see the HMAP Manual which can be found on the <u>HMAP website</u>.

Services Authorization

Once all required eligibility information and documentation has been entered in NC REEDS, the Services Authorization subtab will automatically generate a preliminary eligibility status for Ryan White Part B and HMAP based on the client's information. Part B and HMAP processors make the final determination on a client's eligibility and enrollment. Just because NC REEDS has determined the client eligible does not guarantee the processor will approve the application.

| Ryan | White Eligibility | |
|------|--|--|
| | on this application, the client is currently complete the section below to authorize | |
| | Income | |
| 0 | Residency | |
| | | |

- If the client is determined to be ineligible for Ryan White services based on the information entered by the case manager, the Services Authorization subtab will indicate which eligibility criteria were not met.
- The HMAP Enrollment section of this subtab must be completed by selecting either Yes or No to the question "Does the applicant wish to apply for HMAP?"

| nrollment | |
|-----------------------------------|---|
| rogram Selection | |
| plicant wish to apply for HMAP? * | |
| es | |
| 0 | |
| | |
| | nrollment rogram Selection plicant wish to apply for HMAP? * es o |

• If the client is applying for HMAP, the case manager must indicate that the applicant is applying for HMAP by selecting YES and selecting the HMAP subprogram for the client in this section of the Services Authorization tab.

| APPLICANT | ADDRESSES | PERSONA | L CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION |
|----------------|-------------|-------------|-----------------|----------------|------------|--|------------------------|
| Ryan White Eli | gibility | Ryan Wh | ite Eligibilit | у | | | |
| HMAP Enrollm | ent | | | | | I igible for Ryar IMAP Services. | White services. |
| | | Inc | ome | | | | |
| | | S Re: | sidency | | | | |
| | | III O | / Status | | | | |
| | \diagdown | HMAP Er | rollment | | | | |
| \sim | X | Does applic | cant wish to ap | oply for HMA | P? * | | |
| | | Yes | O No | | | | |
| | | Choose Sul | oprogram * | | | | |
| | | | (Qualified Hea | alth Plan - Co | opay only) | | |
| | | O PCAP | (Full Premiun | n and Copay |) | | |
| | | SPAP | (Medicare Pa | rt D) | | | |
| | | | | Underinsure | -11 | | |

 If the client is NOT applying for HMAP, <u>the case manager must select NO in this section</u> of the services authorization tab.

| HMAP Enrollment |
|--|
| Does applicant wish to apply for HMAP? * |

 Case managers can submit applications for processor review once all information and required documentation has been entered into NC REEDS by selecting the Submit Application button in the top right corner of the screen. If required fields or documentation is missing, the section(s) with missing information will be flagged with red exclamation points. Case managers can navigate back to the flagged section(s) by clicking on the relevant tab(s).

| Eligibility / | Application | | | | | | CLOSE SAVE SUBMIT APPLICATION |
|-----------------|-------------|-------------------|--------|--------|-----------|------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Status: Started | | | | | | | |
| APPLICANT | ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION | |

Checking Client Application Status

The following section describes how to check a client's application status.

Client Eligibility Timeline

• Case managers can check the status of a client's application by navigating to the client's eligibility timeline in the client's file. To access the eligibility timeline, navigate to the client's file by searching for their identifiers (i.e., name and DOB, or case number) in the Client List page.

| Agency A Raleigh, NC | < | Client List | | | | | | REGISTER CLIENT |
|-------------------------|---|-----------------------|------------|---------------------------------|--|----------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| | | MY CLIENTS AGENCY A C | | - Name | Birth Date | | Dient Identifier | Q, SEARCH |
| 21 Client List | | Pilisi Natika | Lasi | No. 1 March 1997 | Bitti Date | | | |
| Applications | | | | | | | | |
| | | Last Name | First Name | DOB | Email | Phone I | Number Case | Manager |
| | | | | A search can be performed using | g a combination of Name and DDB, or an | y associated Client Identi | fier. | |
| | | | | | | | Nows per page: 10 | |

- For easier access, case managers can quickly find any client assigned to their agency under the My Agency subtab in the Client List tab. Similarly, if the case manager is listed as the Lead Case Manager in the client's file, the client can be found under the My Clients subtab.
 - Please Note: For information on assigning a new case manager as the lead case manager for a client coming from a different agency, see the <u>Frequently</u> <u>Asked Questions – Client Applications</u> section of this manual.

| Client L | .ist | | |
|------------|------------------|-------------|--|
| MY CLIENTS | AGENCY A CLIENTS | ALL CLIENTS | |

• In the eligibility timeline, case managers can track the status of a client's application.

| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT | CLIENT INFORMATION | | | |
|---|---|--------------------------------------|--|-------------------------------|
| Eligibility | | | | |
| Timeline Application: Completed 08/27/2024 | RW Review Completed 08/27/2024 HMAP Review Authorized | Eligibility Start Date 08/27/2024 | A Recertification Available 06/30/2025 | Expiration Date 12/31/2025 |
| | | | START | |

- The eligibility timeline contains the following information:
 - **Application**: Indicates the date the case manager completed and submitted the client's application.
 - **RW Review/HMAP Review**: Indicates the date the processors reviewed and authorized the client for services.

- **Eligibility Start Date**: Indicates the date the client is eligible and authorized to receive Ryan White services.
- **Recertification**: Indicates the date the client's recertification application can be started.
- **Expiration Date**: Indicates the date the client's eligibility for Ryan White ends.
- Case managers can verify their application was successfully submitted to the processors for review by looking at the Ryan White/HMAP Review section of the eligibility timeline. A status of Submitted indicates the application was received and is in the queue for review.



 Case managers can verify the application was approved and authorized for services by looking at the Ryan White/HMAP Review section of the eligibility timeline. A status of Completed/Authorized and an eligibility start date indicates the client was approved and successfully enrolled.



• Case managers should also verify the client's enrollment HMAP by navigating to the Enrollment tab in client's file.

| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT CLIENT INFORMATION | | |
|--|--|--------------|
| Program Enrollments | | |
| HMAP Subprogram: UMAP (Uninsured/Underinsured) @Exvelse) | Enrollment Start Date Enrollment End Date 12/17/2024 12/31/2025 | VIEW DETAILS |
| Ryan White | Eligibility Start Date Eligibility End Date 12/17/2024 12/31/2025 | VIEW DETAILS |

• In the enrollment tab, case managers can see the client's current HMAP enrollment, future HMAP enrollment periods, and HMAP enrollment history by clicking the View Details button to expand enrollment details.

| Enrollment History |
|--|
| |
| UMAP (UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED): 12/17/2024 - 12/31/2025 |
| 12/17/2024 🤡 Enrollment Started |
| PCAP (FULL PREMIUM AND COPAY): 01/07/2021 - 09/30/2022 |
| UMAP (UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED): 06/01/2020 - 01/06/2021 |
| 01/06/2021 Subprogram Switch |
| UMAP (UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED): 09/20/2017 - 03/31/2019 |

• If a client was denied HMAP services, this will be indicated in the eligibility timeline under Ryan White/HMAP Review. In the example below, the client was authorized for Ryan White care services but denied from HMAP.



• In this example, the case manager can verify the client was approved for Ryan White but denied from HMAP by navigating to the Enrollment tab.

| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT CLIENT INFORMATION Program Enrollments | | |
|---|---|--------------|
| Ryan White | Eligibility Start DateEligibility End Date01/06/202512/31/2025 | VIEW DETAILS |
| HMAP Subprogram: UMAP (Uninsured/Underinsured) | Enrollment Start Date Enrollment End Date 01/06/2025 01/06/2025 | VIEW DETAILS |

 If a client's application was pended, this will be indicated on the eligibility timeline under Ryan White/HMAP Review. The case manager can select the Make Updates button to open the client's application and identify why the processors pended the application. For more information on pended applications, see the <u>Pended Applications</u> section of this manual.



Application Tab

- Case managers can also check the status of a client's application by navigating to the Application tab. The applications tab includes two subtabs:
 - All Applications: Contains all applications in the NC REEDS system.
 - **Assigned To Me**: Contains all applications completed by the case manager's NC REEDS user account.
- Case managers can search for a client in the All Applications subtab or in the Assigned To Me subtab to quickly find applications they've submitted and applications they have started but not yet submitted.
- The client's application status will be indicated under the Status header in the Applications page.

| Applic | cations | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|-------------------|------------------------------|------------|------|-----------|------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------|-----------|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| ALLAPPLICATIONS ASSIGNED TO ME | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Q Search | h Text | | | | | | | | | | |
| Client ID | Client Name | Date Submitted | Expiration | Туре | Status | Submitter | Case Manager | Urgent Flag 1 | Processor | Subprograms | Application |
| 770001411 | Test, Application | 10/04/2024 94 days | | New | Submitted | Agency A Michael Cacioppo | Agency A Michael Cacioppo | | | UMAP (Uninsured/Und erinsured) | VIEV |

- Application statuses include the following:
 - **Submitted:** Indicates the client's application has been submitted and is awaiting processor review.
 - In Review: Indicates the client's application is in review by the processing team.
 - Pended: Indicates the processor has returned the application to the case manager requesting additional information before authorizing the client. For more information on pended applications, see the <u>Pended Applications</u> section of this manual.
 - In Progress: Indicates the client's application was started and not yet submitted.

| Status | Status | Status | Status | |
|-----------|---------|-----------|-------------|--|
| In Review | Pending | Submitted | In Progress | |

• Case managers can check which fields they want displayed in the Applications tab by clicking the three pillars icon. Case managers can also download the Applications tab as a CSV file by clicking the cloud with a down arrow icon.



• **Please Note:** Once a client's application has been approved or denied, it will no longer show up in the Applications tab. To check the client's application status after the application has been approved or denied, navigate to the eligibility timeline in the client's file. For more information on navigating the eligibility timeline, see the Eligibility Timeline section of this manual.

Pended Applications

The Ryan White/HMAP processing team may pend applications for a number of reasons. The most common reasons applications are pended include needing additional documentation or information from the client/case manager. Reasons for a pended application will be communicated directly in NC REEDS via processor comments. **Pended applications must be resolved within 30 days of the date they were originally pended by the processors and returned to the case manager for updates**.

Case managers who do not resolve pended applications within 30 days will need to start a new application for the previously pended client. For new clients (i.e., those not currently enrolled in Ryan White/HMAP), unresolved pended applications will show as **Cancelled** in the client's eligibility timeline under the Application header. Case managers will need to restart the client's application by selecting the Start New button.

| Timeline | | | | |
|---------------------------------|-------------|------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Ø | 2 RW Review | Ø | | Expiration Date |
| Update: Cancelled 11/02/2024 | HMAP Review | Eligibility Start Date | Recertification | // |
| START NEW | // | | START | |

Pended recertification applications unresolved after 30 days will also require new applications. Clients will not be recertified through the next Ryan White/HMAP coverage period unless the case manager submits a new recertification application for the client.

The following section provides an overview for resolving pended applications in NC REEDS. For more information on pended applications, see the HMAP Manual.

Updating a Pended Application

- Case managers can see that a client's application has been pended in the client's eligibility timeline and/or the Applications tab.
- In the eligibility timeline, an application status of Pending will be indicated under the Ryan White/HMAP Review header.
- Click on the Make Updates button under the Ryan White/HMAP Review header to reopen the client's application and identify the sections that need updates.

| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT | CLIENT INFORMATION | | | |
|------------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|-------------------------------|
| Eligibility | | | | |
| Timeline | | | | |
| Update: Started | 2 RW Review Pending 10/29/2024 | 3 Eligibility Start Date | Recertification | Expiration Date 12/31/2025 |
| 10/29/2024 | HMAP Review Pending 10/29/2024 | 02/13/2024 | Available 06/30/2025 | |
| | MAKE UPDATES | | | |

• Once the case manager clicks the Make Updates button, the section(s) needing update(s) will be indicated with a red exclamation mark.

| Eric Eric Status: Pending | | | | | | | | CLOSE X |
|------------------------------|-------------|-------------------|--------|--------|-----------|---------|-----------|--------------------|
| Eligibility A | pplication | | | | | CANCEL | SAVE | SUBMIT APPLICATION |
| APPLICANT | 0 ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICE | S AUTHORI | ZATION |

 Navigate to the section(s) requiring update(s) and review the processor comments for more details on the requested changes. Case managers can resolve comments after satisfying the processor requests by clicking the Resolve Comment button. If case managers need more information from the processor, they can also reply directly to the comment by clicking the Reply button.

| Keith Gray | |
|--|-----------|
| 08/23/2024 | |
| There is not a certificati | on of HIV |
| Proof and acceptance o and Conditions. Please | |
| and Conditions. Please | submit. |
| | submit. |

• Once the requested updates have been made, the case manager can resubmit the application by selecting the Submit Application button.



 Case managers can also see that a client's application has been pended in the Application tab. To do so, navigate to the Applications tab. Click either the Assigned to Me tab or search the client's identifiers in the All Applications tab. Case managers who submitted the pended application or update will see the application or update on their Assigned to Me tab listed with a Status of Pending.

| Applications | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|-----------------------|------|---------|---------------|-------------|------------|---|
| ALL APPLICATIONS ASSIGNE | D TO ME | | | | | | |
| ٩ | | | / | | | 0 ē | ш |
| Client Name | Date Submitted | Туре | Status | Urgent Flag ↑ | Application | | |
| Pugliese, Augustus | 09/27/2024 59 days | New | Pending | _ | MAKE | | |

• Case managers can select the Make Updates button under the Application header to reopen the client's application and identify the sections that need updates.

NC REEDS Case Manager Manual

- For more information on checking the status of a pended application once it has been resubmitted, see the <u>Checking Client Application Status</u> section of this manual.
- *Please Note:* Case managers can generate a list of clients whose applications have been pended by using the Dashboard tab in NC REEDS. For more information, see the Additional NC REEDS Resources Dashboard section of this manual.

Recertification Applications

Recertification applications refer to Ryan White/HMAP applications for clients who are <u>currently</u> <u>enrolled</u> in Ryan White and/or HMAP and are applying to renew enrollment for the next coverage period. Client recertifications are completed for Ryan White and/or HMAP services annually. **The annual recertification period for Ryan White/HMAP services is July 1 through September 30.** The following section provides details on completing the recertification application. For more information on recertification, see the <u>HMAP Manual</u>.

Submitting a Recertification Application

- Case managers can check when a client's recertification application can be started by navigating to the eligibility timeline in the client's file.
- To access the eligibility timeline, navigate to the client's file by searching for their identifiers (i.e., name, DOB, and/or case number) in the Client List page.
- In the eligibility timeline, case managers will see the date the client's recertification application can be started under the Recertification header.



- When the recertification date has been reached, the case manager can click the Start button underneath the Recertification header to begin the client's recertification application.
- The requirements for recertification applications are the same as the requirements for a new application.
- When completing the recertification application, NC REEDS will automatically pull the most recent details that were entered for the client in their previous eligibility application. Case managers will still need to upload current (within the past 60 days) documentation to successfully complete the recertification application.
- Case managers can navigate between the eligibility application subtabs to complete and update the client's application. For more information on completing the eligibility application, see the <u>Eligibility Application</u> section of this manual.
- **Please Note:** If a case manager starts but does not submit a recertification application, that application will be locked until completed and submitted by the case manager. It will not be reviewed by the processing team until it is finalized and submitted.
- **Please Note:** If a recertification application has not been approved before the new enrollment period begins (for example, at the start of the new calendar year) or before the client's current enrollment expires, a new application will need to be started for the client in the current enrollment period.

Client Updates

Case managers are required to notify the Ryan White/HMAP processors whenever there has been a change in client information (e.g., address, phone number, income, family size, insurance coverage, etc.). Most client changes require processor review to verify the client is still eligible for Ryan White/HMAP services. The following section provides an overview of how to submit client updates in NC REEDS.

Submitting a Client Update in NC REEDS

- Navigate to the client's file by searching for their identifiers (i.e., name, DOB, and/or client ID) in the Client List page.
- Open the client's file and navigate to the Client Information subtab.

| Agency A 🗸 Raleigh, NC | John Doe | |
|---------------------------|---|-------------|
| IIII Dashboard | Client ID: 770000610 ELIOIBILITY ENROLMENT CLIENT INFORMATION Client al | |
| John Doe Applications | General CLENT DETAILS ADDRESSES PERSONAL CONTACTS INCOME HEALTH INSURANCE CARE TEAM | |
| | Client Details | CANCEL SAVE |

- Enter any changes to client information by navigating to the relevant subtab (e.g., Addresses, Income, Insurance, etc.). Click the Save button to save your changes.
- If the case manager makes updates to the client profile that <u>do not impact eligibility</u>, the changes will be saved and updated immediately upon hitting the Save button. The changes will not go to the processing team for review. Updates that do not require processor review include changes made in the following sections:
 - Personal Contacts
 - Care Team
- If the case manager makes an update to the client profile that <u>could possibly impact</u> <u>eligibility</u>, the client's profile will be submitted to the processing team for review. Updates that require processor review include changes made in the following sections:
 - o Client Details
 - **Please Note**: If updating the client's name, documentation of the name change must be uploaded in the Client Details section.
 - o Addresses
 - o Income
 - o Insurance
 - o Health
- If the case manager makes an update to the client's profile to indicate the client is deceased:
 - On the Client Details tab scroll down to the Deceased section and click on the "Is Deceased?" toggle.
 - Two new required fields will appear; please fill out the date the client passed away, if unknown please use the date you are reporting the client is deceased. Please fill in the "Cause of Death" if known, if not known please type "unknown" in that field.

- NC REEDS will automatically disenroll the client from HMAP and terminate their Part B Care eligibility as of the date the client's passing is reported.
- After the case manager makes the change and clicks the Save button, the NC REEDS screen will refresh to indicate the change has been submitted and is awaiting processor review. The fields in the client profile will be locked until the processor reviews the changes.



- For updates requiring processor review, case managers can check the status of the client's application by navigating to the client's eligibility timeline and/or the Applications tab. For more information on checking a client's application status, see the <u>Checking</u> <u>Client Application Status</u> section of this manual.
- **Please Note:** If a case manager does not have the new address of a client who has moved out of state and needs to be terminated from Ryan White/HMAP, the case manager can submit an Addresses update with "Client moved out of state" in the furst address line, then enter the client's new state's capital and zip code as the client's new address. Changing the client's address to a non-North Carolina address will automatically terminate the client.
- **Please Note**: Once the case manager makes and saves an update on any of the subtabs that require processor review, certain subtabs in the client profile will be locked until the processors review and approve the change.
 - Client Details: Updates to the client's name, date of birth, social security number, or deceased status will lock only the Client Details subtab while waiting processor review.
 - **Addresses:** Any update on the Addresses subtab will lock the Addresses subtab <u>and</u> the Insurance subtab while waiting processor review.
 - **Income:** Any update on the Income subtab will lock only the Income subtab while waiting processor review.
 - **Health:** Updates to the client's HIV disease stage will lock only the Health subtab while waiting processor review.
 - **Insurance:** Any update on the Insurance subtab will lock the Insurance subtab <u>and</u> the Addresses subtab while waiting processor review.

Incarcerated Clients

Individuals incarcerated in a local detention center may be eligible for Ryan White/HMAP if the local detention center is unable to pay for HIV-related medications and the client is not in the custody of the State or Federal prison system. Individuals housed in State or Federal prisons or housed in a local detention center under the custody of State or Federal prison are ineligible for Ryan White/HMAP because the State and Federal prison systems are required to provide medical care, treatment, and medication.

For more information on the North Carolina Ryan White/HMAP policy on serving individuals incarcerated in local detention centers, see the HMAP Program Manual found on the <u>HMAP</u> <u>website</u>.

Statement of Financial Need

Local detention centers participating with Ryan White/HMAP must provide a Statement of Financial Need that documents the facility's inability to pay for HIV-related medications. The Statement of Financial Need must explain why the facility cannot provide HIV-related medications on the facility's letterhead and signed by an authorized official (Jail Health Administrator, Medical Director, clinician, Financial Officer, Operations Manager, etc.).

The HMAP office will review and approvement Statements of Financial Need submitted by local detention centers within two business days. The Statement of Financial Need will cover all individuals incarcerated at that facility for up to 12 months from the date it was signed. Each local detention center is required to provide a new Statement of Financial Need annually (based on the date the previous Statement was signed). The HMAP Office will contact participating local detention centers when it is time for them to renew the Statement.

Jail staff cannot submit Ryan White/HMAP applications in NC REEDS if the Statement of Financial Need is out of date. To verify whether your facility has a current Statement, contact Iris Girard at Iris.Girard@dhhs.nc.gov.

Completing the Eligibility Application for Clients in Jail

The following section describes how to complete the eligibility application for clients that are currently in a local detention center.

Searching a Client and Checking For an Existing Record

Before starting an eligibility application for a client in NC REEDS, use the NC REEDS client search feature to check whether the client has an existing NC REEDS profile. Avoiding duplicate client profiles in NC REEDS is essential to ensuring there are no delays in medication dispensing or service provision for clients. For more information on searching for duplicates, see the <u>Submitting a New Client Eligibility Application in NC REEDS</u> section of this manual.

If the client does not already exist in NC REEDS, proceed to create a new profile for the client. For more information on registering a new client in NC REEDS, see the <u>Registering a New</u> <u>Client</u> section of this manual.

Starting the Eligibility Application

• After registering and saving a new client profile in NC REEDS or after selecting an existing client in NC REEDS, the system will automatically open to the client's eligibility

timeline. All client applications will be initiated in the client's eligibility timeline. To begin the application, click the Start button beneath the Application header.

| Anthony Stark | | | | |
|-------------------------------|-------------|------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT CLIENT | INFORMATION | | | |
| Eligibility | | | | |
| Timeline | | | | |
| 0 | 2 RW Review | 3 | ٥ | Expiration Date |
| Application | HMAP Review | Eligibility Start Date | Recertification | // |
| START | // | | START | |

• Jail staff can open the client's eligibility timeline at any point by searching the client in the Client List tab and selecting the client's profile from their My Clients subtab. The client can also be located by searching their information in the All Clients tab or My Agency subtab.

Applicant Subtab

• The eligibility application will contain several subtabs to complete to determine the client's eligibility for HMAP and/or Ryan White Part B care services.

| Eligibility A Status: Not Sta | | | | | | | CLOSE | SAVE | SUBMIT APPLICATION |
|----------------------------------|-----------|-------------------|--------|--------|-----------|------------------------|-------|------|--------------------|
| APPLICANT | ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION | | | |

- Once in the eligibility application, NC REEDS will open into the Applicant subtab. Several fields will automatically populate based on the information recorded when the client was registered (e.g., name, date of birth, gender identity).
- Complete all required fields in the applicant subtab.
 - While email address is a required field, you can enter your own work email address or type "No email address."
- The applicant subtab is where jail staff can designate if an applicant is **urgent**. If the jail staff indicates the application is urgent, they will be prompted to select a reason why the application is urgent. Indicating a client's application as urgent will move the application to the top of the processors' queue.

| Urger | t Application | | | | | | | |
|----------|---------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Is Clien | Is Client's application urgent? | | | | | | | |
| Y | /es | | | | | | | |
| [| Urgency Type - | | | | | | | |
| 0 | - No Selection - | | | | | | | |
| | High Viral Load | | | | | | | |
| Docu | Loss of Job/Employer Insurance | | | | | | | |
| Upload | Pending Jail Discharge | | | | | | | |
| | Pregnant | | | | | | | |
| Docu | Rapid ART | | | | | | | |
| | Recent Move to the State | | | | | | | |

Addresses Subtab

- For new HMAP clients in a local detention center, enter their Primary Address as their last known physical address.
- Select NO to the question, "Is mailing address the same as primary?"
- Enter the **jail address** as the Mailing Address.
- Enter the name of the jail as the "Mail to Name."

| APPLICANT ADDRESSES PER | IRSONAL CONTACTS INCOME | HEALTH INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION | |
|---|--|-------------------------|------------------------|--|
| Addresses | | | | |
| Housing Status Primary Address Secondary Address Documentation | Housing Status * O Stable/Perm O Temporary O Unstable Housing Type * | anent | Ţ | |
| | Primary Addre | ss | | |
| | Apt / Lot / Floor | | | |
| | City* | | | |
| | State * | * Zip Code* | | |
| | County * | | * | |
| | Is Mailing Address O Yes No | same as Primary Addres: | i? * | |

- Residency documentation must be uploaded in the Addresses. For jail clients, complete and upload the Declaration of Residence Form. The current version of the form can be found on the <u>HMAP website</u>.
- To upload the Declaration of Residence form, navigate to the bottom of the address subtab and select the Add Documentation button.
- Under Documentation Type, select Declaration of Residence.

| | Upload CANCEL UPLOAD |
|-------|--|
| | Documentation Type * |
| Decl | aration of Residence form |
| Docu | mentation from HMAP, UMAP pharmacy, or Pharmacy Benefits Manager |
| Incor | ne Documentation |
| Prov | der documentation (clinician, case manager, other) |
| Rece | nt Utility Bill, Phone Bill, or Lease |
| State | or Federal Government issued Identification Card |
| Valid | Driver's License |
| | Rows per page: 10 |

• Once the documentation has been selected, click the Upload button.

Personal Contacts Subtab

- In the Personal Contacts subtab, enter the jail interviewer's information. Include the interviewer's phone number or email address.
- For Relationship to Client, select "Incarceration Interviewer."

| dd Contact | + ADD CONTACT |
|---------------|---|
| Relationship] | [First Name] [Last Name] - [Relationship] |
| | First Name |
| | Last Name |
| | Relationship to Client 👻 |
| | Date of Birth |
| | Phone Number |
| | Is this person an emergency contact? Yes No |
| | Email Address |
| | Address same as Client's Address? |

Income Subtab

• For clients in a local detention center, select NO to the question, "Does the applicant have personal income?"

| Client's Personal Income | |
|---|--|
| Does the client have personal income? * | |

- Complete all required fields in the income section, including information on applicant's household income, employment status, and tax filing status.
- Jail staff are required to enter documentation verifying the client's income. For jail clients, complete and upload the No/Low Income Form. The current version of the form can be found on the <u>HMAP website</u>.
- To upload the No/Low Income form, navigate to the bottom of the Income subtab and select the Add Documentation button.
- Under Documentation Type, select No/Low Income Form.
- Once the documentation has been selected, click the Upload button.



Health Subtab

• Complete all required fields in the health subtab, including HIV status, estimated HIV diagnosis date, and antiretroviral therapy history.

| General | Has the applicant received a current diagnosis for Hepatitis C? No | • |
|-----------------------------------|--|---|
| HIV Status Proof of HIV Status | HIV Status | |
| | Current Disease Stage * | |
| | O AIDS | |
| | O HIV Indeterminate | |
| | O HIV Negative | |
| | O HIV Positive AIDS Status Unknown | |
| | HIV Positive Not AIDS | |
| | Estimated Date HIV Diagnosed * | ä |
| | Identified HIV Risk Factor(s) * | |
| | Heterosexual Contact | - |
| | Are you currently on Antiretroviral Therapy? * | |
| | Yes Estimated Date Antinetroviral Therapy Started * 10/29/2021 | |
| | O No | |

 Proof of HIV Status: Jail staff are required to certify the client is HIV positive. Please share the "Terms and Conditions" that are available for download from the application with your clients. To verify the client's HIV status, the jail staff will be prompted to enter their electronic signature in NC REEDS. This signature will serve as proof documentation of the client's HIV status. The date signed will automatically populate once signed.

| Proof of HIV | ' Status |
|------------------|--|
| explained (or re | e above-named individual is HIV positive. I certify that I have ead) the <u>Terms and Conditions for Applicant and Interviewer</u> in to the client who is requesting Ryan White services. |
| Interviewer S | ignature * |
| Date Signed | |
| 10/29/2024 | |

Insurance Subtab

- On the Insurance tab, select No Benefits.
- Complete all required fields on the Insurance tab.

| Private Insurance | |
|--------------------------|---|
| Private Insurance Status | • |
| | |

• **Please Note:** If a client at your local detention center has Medicaid, they may still apply for HMAP and receive medications if they are approved. However, the client will be terminated from HMAP upon release if they still have active Medicaid.

Services Authorization

Once all required eligibility information and documentation has been entered in NC REEDS, the Services Authorization subtab will automatically generate a preliminary eligibility status for Ryan White Part B and HMAP based on the client's information. Part B and HMAP processors make the final determination on a client's eligibility. Just because NC REEDS has determined the client eligible does not guarantee the processor will approve the application.

| Ryan | White Eligibility | |
|------|--|--|
| | on this application, the client is currently elig complete the section below to authorize HM | |
| • | Income | |
| | Residency | |
| | HIV Status | |
| | | |

- If the client is determined to be ineligible for Ryan White services based on the information entered by the case manager, the Services Authorization subtab will indicate which eligibility criteria were not met.
- The HMAP Enrollment section of this subtab must be completed by selecting either Yes or No to the question "Does the applicant wish to apply for HMAP?"

| HMAP Enrollment | |
|--|--|
| Sub-Program Selection | |
| Does applicant wish to apply for HMAP? * | |
| O Yes | |
| O No | |
| | |

• Select YES to the question, "Does the applicant wish to apply for HMAP?" Select UMAP as the subprogram.

| | Duran Million Elizability | | | | | |
|------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Ryan White Eligibility | Ryan White Eligibility | | | | | |
| HMAP Enrollment | Based on this application, the client is currently eligible for Ryan White services. Prease complete the section below to authorize HMAP Services. | | | | | |
| | Income | | | | | |
| | Residency | | | | | |
| | HIV Status | | | | | |
| | HMAP Enrollment Sub-Program Selection | | | | | |
| | Does applicant wish to apply for HMAP? * | | | | | |
| | Yes | | | | | |
| | Choose Subprogram * | | | | | |
| | O SPAP (Medicare Part D) | | | | | |
| | UMAP (Uninsured/Underinsured) | | | | | |
| | Owner (Oninscred) Orderinscred) | | | | | |
| | ICAP (Qualified Health Plan - Copay only) | | | | | |
| | - | | | | | |

• The application can be submitted for processor review once all information and required documentation has been entered into NC REEDS by selecting the Submit Application button in the top right corner of the screen. If required fields or documentation is missing, the section(s) with missing information will be flagged with red exclamation points. Case managers can navigate back to the flagged section(s) by clicking on the relevant tab(s).

| Eligibility A | Application | | | | | | CLOSE SAVE | SUBMIT APPLICATION |
|-----------------|-------------|-------------------|--------|--------|-----------|------------------------|------------|--------------------|
| Status: Started | | | | | | | | _ |
| | | | | | | | | / |
| APPLICANT | ADDRESSES | PERSONAL CONTACTS | INCOME | HEALTH | INSURANCE | SERVICES AUTHORIZATION | | |

Additional NC REEDS Resources

The following section provides an overview of additional NC REEDS resources for case managers and supporting agencies.

Application History

The Application History feature in NC REEDS is used to show the historical information collected within NC REEDS from previous applications and updates that have been submitted in NC REEDS. NC REEDS users can access clients' historical applications and updates after processing is complete. A history of when the application or update was submitted, reviewed, pended, and approved is also available for any application or update that has been submitted in NC REEDS. To view a client's Application History navigate to the client's eligibility page and scroll down past their Ryan White Eligibility History to the section labeled "Application History". To view the history of a specific application, click the "VIEW" button to open the application and click on the "HISTORY" tab to see who submitted it, when it was submitted, who reviewed it, etc.

See below for an example of the Eligibility page. The historical information is only available for applications and updates that have been submitted since NC REEDS implementation in October 2024. In the example below, there are two updates that were submitted through NC REEDS and historical information is available. The oldest record in the example below is from prior to NC REEDS implementation and is missing historical information.

| imeline | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|--|----------------------------|---------------------------------|--|-------------------------|-------------------------------|-------|
| Update: | Completed | RW Review Completed 02/06/2025 HMAP Review Authorized 02/06/2025 | | Cilgibility Start Date | Recertifica Available 06/3 START | 0/2025 | Expiration Date 12/31/2025 | |
| yan White El | ligibility History | | | | | | | |
| LIGIBILITY PERIOD: | 02/05/2025 - 12/31/2025 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 02/05/2025 🕏 EI | igibility Started | | | | | | SHOW E | ETAIL |
| | 10/04/2023 - 12/31/2024 | | | | | | SHOW E | ETAIL |
| pplication H | 10/04/2023 - 12/31/2024 istory | Status | Started Date | Last Updated Date | Started By | Submitter | | |
| LIGIBILITY PERIOD: | 10/04/2023 - 12/31/2024 | Status Completed | Started Date 02/06/2025 | Last Updated Date 02/06/2025 | Started By REEDS USER | Submitter REEDS USER | SHOW C Action VIEW | |
| LIGIBILITY PERIOD: pplication H | 10/04/2023 - 12/31/2024 istory Type | | | | | | Action | |

See below for an example of the new History Tab that provides historical information about the specific update that was submitted through NC REEDS, including who submitted it, who processed it, status, and dates.

| itatus: Compl | leted | | | |
|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------|---------|------------------------|
| INSURANCE | | | | |
| INSURANCE | | | | |
| | SERVICES AU | THORIZATION | HISTORY | |
| Basic Inform | mation | | | |
| ssigned Case Ma | | | | |
| lient's Case M | | | | |
| ssigned Case Ma lient's Case M | nager Agency anagement Agency | r. | | |
| ssigned Process | | | | |
| yan White Detern | nination Processor | | | |
| rocessor | | | | |
| DAP Authorizatio | n Processor | | | |
| Processor | | | | |
| Date | Status | User | | Agency |
| 01/09/2025 | Completed | Processor | | NC REEDS |
| 01/09/2025 | In Review | Processor | | NC REEDS |
| 01/09/2025 | Submitted | Submitting (| M | Submitting CM's Agency |
| 01/06/2025 | Pending | Processor | | NC REEDS |
| 01/06/2025 | In Review | Processor | | NC REEDS |
| 01/06/2025 | Submitted | Submitting (| CM | Submitting CM's Agency |
| | Started | Submitting (| M | Submitting CM's Agency |
| 01/06/2025 | 12012302225 | | | |

Dashboard

The dashboard feature in NC REEDS is used to show helpful metrics for clients at your agency. When the user clicks on a metric name, NC REEDS will generate a list of all the clients/applications that fall into that category. The list will also contain blue buttons that allow the user to take action for the client, such as Making Updates to a pended application. The following section provides a description of each of the metrics available in the Dashboard tab.



- Applications Not Submitted Within 2 Days: Generates a list of clients whose applications were started more than 2 days ago but have not been completed and submitted for processor review.
- Clients with Expiring Eligibility in the Next 30 Days: Generates a list of clients whose eligibility will expire/end within the next 30 days. Clients included on this list need to be recertified to ensure they do not fall off Ryan White and/or HMAP within the next 30 days.
- **Clients with Expired Eligibility:** Generates a list of clients whose eligibility is currently expired.
- **Pending Applications:** Generates a list of clients whose applications have been pended by the processing team and returned to the case manager for changes. These applications need to be updated with the requested changes and returned to the processors for review.
- Unstarted Applications 14 Days into Recertification: Generates a list of clients who became eligible for recertification more than 14 days ago but have not had their recertification application started or submitted.

IT Help Desk Ticket

• Case managers that have an IT-related NC REEDS issue can submit a ticket to the Groupware Help Desk directly in NC REEDS. To submit a ticket, navigate to the Question Mark button in the top right corner of the screen and select Contact Support.



• Enter the details of the issue in the Submit a ticket page and click Submit. The team from Groupware will respond to the requests.

| Submit a ticket | |
|------------------------------|---|
| Requester * | |
| Email | |
| Subject • | |
| What Can We Help You With? • | |
| | ~ |
| Priority * | |
| Low | ~ |

NC REEDS Help Email Account

• Case managers can reach out directly to NC DHHS staff with NC REEDS programmatic questions to <u>NCREEDSHelp@dhhs.nc.gov</u>.

Appendix A – Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

The following section provides guidance for frequently asked questions about NC REEDS.

Account Set-Up

I forgot my password. How do I create a new one?

Contact your NC REEDS agency administrator or the <u>NCREEDSHelp@dhhs.nc.gov</u> email account to request a password reset link. When you reset your password, you will also need to reconfigure your multifactor authentication program.

I don't want to download a multifactor authentication (MFA) app to my personal phone. Is there another option?

Yes! If you don't want to download an MFA app to your phone, you can download the <u>Protecc</u> <u>computer program</u> for Windows. Protecc is a free computer-based MFA program that allows you to verify your NC REEDS login attempts on your computer instead of your personal device. For more information on linking NC REEDS to Protecc, click this <u>link</u> for a video tutorial.

I have a new case manager at my agency that needs access to NC REEDS. How do I get them an account?

All agencies should have designated an administrator for their agency. Agency administrators have the ability to request new user accounts in NC REEDS. To request a new user account for your agency in NC REEDS, follow the steps below.

- Navigate to the User Management tab on the lefthand side of your NC REEDS screen. Click the Request User Invite button in the top right corner.
 - *Please Note:* Only agency administrators will have access to the User Management tab.

| 😯 User Management | USER LIST | APPROVAL REG | QUESTS | | | REQUEST USER INVITE |
|-----------------------------|----------------|---------------|--------|--------|-------------------|---------------------|
| User List User Requests | ٩ | | | | | 5 8 8 ₹ |
| User requests | Last ↑ Name | First Name | Email | Agency | Account Status | Last Login |

• Enter the user's credentials and permissions. For case managers, check Case Manager under the *Permissions for user at selected agency* header. Select Edit for Ryan White/HMAP under the *Programs for user at selected agency* header.

| Request New User | Permissions |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------|
| User Details | Case Manager |
| First Name * | Agency Admin PI |
| Last Name * | Case Manager |
| Email * | 🔿 None 🔿 Read 💿 Edit |
| Agency Name * NC REEDS Sub Agency * | Ryan White |

• Click the Submit button in the upper right hand side of the screen. An NC DHHS agency administrator will review and approve all new user requests.

 Please Note: If you do not have an agency administrator or do not know who your agency administrator is, reach out to <u>NCREEDSHelp@dhhs.nc.gov</u> for assistance requesting new users.

My link to set up my NC REEDS account doesn't work anymore. What do I do?

NC REEDS new user invitation links expire after 7 days. Contact your NC REEDS agency administrator or the <u>NCREEDSHelp@dhhs.nc.gov</u> email account to request a password reset link. When you reset your password, you will also need to reconfigure your multifactor authentication program.

Client Applications

NC REEDS gives me an error when I try to submit a client application. What do I do?

If NC REEDS is not allowing you to submit an application, review the application tabs to ensure you did not miss any of the required questions or documentation uploads. Missing required information will be highlighted by a red circle with an exclamation point right before the tab's name.



NC REEDS requires proof documentation in the income and addresses sections. If documentation was not uploaded in both sections, NC REEDS will not allow you to submit the application. NC REEDS will also block application submission if all required fields are not answered. All required fields are designated with an asterisk (*).

I searched my new client in the All Clients list and found a profile that already exists for them. What do I do?

If you find a client profile already exists for the client you are attempting to register, <u>do not</u> <u>register a new client profile for them</u>. Creating a duplicate client profile creates errors in NC REEDS that delays service provision and medication dispensing. Instead, click on the client's existing profile to check their enrollment history. To check the client's enrollment history, click on the Client Enrollment tab.



If the client is currently enrolled in HMAP and/or Ryan White Part B, you can proceed to update the client's information (i.e., changing your agency to the client's lead agency or adding an insurance update) by navigating to the Client Information tab. Add the updates and click Save. For more information on client updates, see the <u>Client Updates</u> section of this manual.

If the client is not currently enrolled in HMAP and/or Ryan White Part B, you can proceed to start a new application for them. To do so, navigate to their eligibility timeline and click the Start button under the Application header.



What do I do if my client does not have documentation for income or North Carolina residency?

There are documents available on the <u>HMAP website</u> to record extenuating circumstances that inhibit a client from having proof documentation for income and/or North Carolina residency. These include the Declaration of Residence Form, the No/Low Income Form, and the Income Signature Card. For more information on circumstances that permit submission of alternative documentation, see the HMAP Manual.

How do I request HMAP for a client currently receiving care-only services?

If your client is eligible for HMAP, you can click the Request HMAP button in the client's eligibility timeline to request the processors' review the client's application for HMAP enrollment. You will need to specify which subprogram the client is applying for. For more information on the HMAP subprograms, see the HMAP Manual.



Can I save an application and finish it later?

Yes! You can save an application and finish it at a later time by clicking the Save button in the top right corner of your page while you are in a client's application. Please note the application will not be submitted for processor review until all sections are complete and you click the Submit Application button. To return to an unfinished application, navigate to the client's eligibility timeline and click the Continue button under the Application header.



Please Note: If you start an application but do not submit it for processor review, the client's information will lock and cannot be updated by anyone at NC DHHS. For example, if a client

enrolled in HMAP is found to have full coverage Medicaid and needs to be disenrolled from HMAP, the HMAP team will be unable to disenroll the client until their application has been completed and submitted.

How do I make myself the lead case manager for a client?

To make yourself the lead case manager for a client coming from a different agency, navigate to the client's profile and select the Client Information tab. Navigate to the Care Team subtab. Enter your name and your agency under Lead Agency. Click Save.

| Tom Brady Client ID: 770001497 | | |
|-------------------------------------|---|--------------|
| ELIGIBILITY ENROLLMENT | CLIENT INFORMATION | |
| General | | |
| General Client details Addresses | 9 PERSONAL CONTACTS INCOME HEALTH INSURANCE CARE TEAM | \mathbf{r} |
| Care Team | | CANCEL SAVE |
| Lead Agency | Lead Agency Agency Name * Agency A * Agency A * CM Tryphaena Case Manager Case Manager Phone Number | |
| | | |

Eligibility and Enrollment

Will I get notified about my client's application status?

No, you will not be directly notified of your client's application status after it has been reviewed by the processing team. You can check your client's application status by navigating to their eligibility timeline and/or their program enrollment tab. For more information on checking your client's application status, see the <u>Checking Client Application Status</u> section of this manual.